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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Ambassador Hotel Historic District consists of four architecturally 
significant structures :v!"iich are tied by com:non ownership and service 
to the Ambassador Hotel. The Ambassador itself is located at 3600 
Broadway, on the southwest corner of Broadway and Knickerbocker Place. 
Apartments Ambassador A and Ambassador Bare located adjacent to the 
hotel on Knickerbocker Street. The Congress Building is located 
directly across the street from the hotel at 3527 Broadway. 

The development of Broadway, Main, and Armour Boulevard was dramatic 
in the 1920's and 1930's with the shift pulling away from the downtown 
Kansas City area. The era of construction of the four buildings in 
this district also includes many major apartment buildingson Armour 
and apartment and commercial buildings on Main Street. Both of these 
areas are· pending nomination,to the National Register, .one in the 
form of a .district (Armour B<:mle'1ard) and one in the form of. another 
hotel district (Netherlands Hotel.) Immediately adjacent to the. 
Craftsman-style Ambassador A and Bis an area known as Knickerbocker 
Place, pending local Landmark designation because of its significant 
intact urban neighborhood. Directly to the north lies the Kansas City 
Life Building (Wight and Wight, 1923), a prototype for the Congress 
Building. 

The area surrounding the Ambassador Hotel historic district is rich 
in architecturally significant buildings. The lawn and landscaping of 
Kansas City Life provide a lush park-like atmosphere to the street­
scape ·Which is ~urther .enhanced by,Knickerbocker Place. Broadway in 
this block remains relatively intact, providing an urban streetscape 
of predominantly 1920-1930 buildings. 

Buildings Con<tributing ·.to the Character ,of the District: 

1. The Ambassador Hotel (3600 Broadway): The,Ambass~dor Hotel has 
a 140' frontage on Broadway and extends 108' to the west. It 
was constructed by the Quality Builders in 1924 and designed 
by Nelle E. Peters in a Spanish Revival mode. 

The original facade of the building remains relatively intact. 
It is constructed of buff bri1k and is eight stories high, rede­
signed from an original four. The five-bay facade is flanked on 
each end by eight-story bays delineated by terracotta quoins 
and projecting from the central three bays wn±oh extend to nine 
stories with the roof garden. Tile roofing, wrought iron balconies 
at the roof garden level, and polychrome terracotta lunettes 
combine to exemplify the Spanish Revival style. The first floor 
storefront retains two of its original storefronts, with the 
remaining six having been altered by the addition of new glass 
and metal transoms. The original canopy has been removed and 
replaced by an aluminum canopy. The original doors have also 
been removed. The interior was remodelled in the 19SO•s2 and little 



Form No. 10-300a 
(Hev. 10-741 

u "<ITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE ll',TERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

FOR NPS USE ONLY 

NATIONAL REGISTER OF IDSTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM 

RECEIVED 

DATE ENTERED 

AMBASSADOR HOTEL HISTORIC DISTRICT 

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 7 PAGE 1 

of the original decor remains. However, the brass elevators with 
engraved "A" remain in good working condition. 

2. Ambassador A {435 Knickerbocker Place) See #3. 

3. Ambassador B {441 Knickerbocker Place): Ambassador A and Bare 
3-story Craftsmen-style apartments which were constructed in T924 
by Quality Builders, designed by Nelle E. Peters, and built to 
accommodate overflow and provide extra income for the hotel. They 
are identieal in style, with inset stone decoration and a 
distinctive motif repeated on the porch posts and at the roofline 
which seems to have been possibly derived from an Art Nouveau 
tradition. The porch extends from the front facade, and has a roof 
of tile. It is supported by br~cketed posts decorated with inset 
stone. The apartments are virtually unaltered on the exterior and 
retain many original architectural features such as copper Mission­
style porch and post lamps, glass-reverse signage, and ornate brass 
door plates. The interior apartments have been modernized, but the 
brass mailboxes and marble wainscoting in the entry foyer remain. 

The two apartments are located in a particularly beautiful area, 
at the beginning of Knickerbocker Street, and they are shaded by 
tall trees from the Kansas City Life property. 

4. Congress Building {3527 Broadway): The Congress Building was 
built in 1925 for A.B. Robbins of the Congress Garage Company. It 
was designed by Robert F. Gornall for a lot 150'xl50' square. 
Gornall's inspiration for this fine modern building was the 
Kansas City Life building down the block. 3 It ~s ~uilt of brick 
and reinforced concrete and faced with Indiana limestone.4 The 
structure originally rose to four floors; in March of 1927 Gornall 
add<S'd }'Ct another fifth story, in the same limestone veneer. The 
primary facade is divided into three bays, with a large central 
five-story bay flanked by two four-story bays. At the aorthwest 
corner of the building is the garage entrance. This ranp led to 
parking for 150 cars; parking which had access onto the interior 
suites and was separated from the commercial area by a massive 
fireproof wall. The second story features floor-to-ceiling plate 
glass windows flanked by a double hung sash; these window units 
rest between stone pilasters enhanced by massive copper Gothi~­
style lamps. The second story windows are then topped with a 
cresting in a classical motif. Beneath the windows are metal 
friezes, embellished with a design almost identical to the one 
used by Gornall in the design of the Uptown Theatre further 



Form No 10-JOOa 
\kev 10· 741 

L NITED STA TES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM 

FOR NPSUSE ONLY 

RECEIVED 

DATE ENTERED 

AMBASSADOR HOTEL HISTORIC DISTRICT 

CONTINUATION SHEET ITEM NUMBER 7 PAGE 2 

south on Broadway. The storefronts are intact except for the 
addition of aluminum storm doors. 

Footnotes 

1. Kansa,; :i ty Star, May 31, 1925. 

2. Public Works ::l"'pt. 

3. Kansas City Star, October 4, l925. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The Ambassador Hotel Historic District is significant as a group of 
buildings under common own2rship and with a common past; as a group 
of buildings with architectural value, both individually and col­
lectively; and as a group of ·:uildings that, bec?.use of their age, 
their- proximity to each- other, and their location on Broadway recreate 
an a-tmosphere of thriving- economic develop:nent ·present. in the era of 
the- 1920 IS.-

The t.mbassador Hotel was built on the Santa Fe Trail, on the site of 
the Allen B. McG-2e Farmstead. McGee entertained such famous visitors 
as Kit Carson, General John C. Freemont, and Senator Thomas H. Benton; 
such prominent fare enabled an enterprising 1920's ad man to exclaim: 
''Now the farm and forest home have been supplanted by America's most 
beautiful hotel and roof garden. But the friendly warmth and hospitality 
remain. 111 Perhaps the site was chosen for this romantic reason by 
developer/realtor Barney Goodman, founder of the Ambassador Realty 
eompany, and Charlie Phillips' of the ·Philrips 'Building Company for their 
new hotel in 1924. Goodman was a very successful real estate broker 
and hotel man ~ho wisely invested in California property as well as 
Missouri hotels--at one time he was the owner of the famous CoroJado 
Hotel. In fact, the A.~bassador was christened after its namesake in 
Los Angeles.2 Many of Goodman's deals were made with life ins~rance 
companies. For· their architect for the project the two men chose 
Nelle E. Peters, one of Kansas City's foremost women architects. 

Peters specialized in hotels and apartments, but designed many other 
buildings throughout Missouri. Born Nelle Nichols in Niagar~, North 
Dakota in 1884, Peters graduated from Buena Vista College at Storm 
Lak2, Iowa and slowly made her way in 1907 to the Kansas City office 
of Ernest 0. Brostram: After a lull in her career wl1ich coincided 
with marriage and divorce (1911-1925), she began practice in earnest 
and started designing homes. Much of her work was done in the Spanish 
Revival mod2 so common to Kansas City, and a style which the Ambassador 
typifies. 3 

Spanish Revival is a prodigious style in Kansas City, and many of 
the terracotta buildings designed in this mode in the 20's and 30's 
still rer1ai. ,. They are however rapidly disappeari11g. The style was 
prominently used in the construction of the Country Club Plaza by 
Edward Buehler Delk in the early 1920's: "Perhaps the most 
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characteristic features of the early Plaza style are found in the use 
6f towers and in exterior polychromy. The la.acer was achieved through 
painted stucco, decorative tiles, terracotta ornament, tile roofs, 
and ornamental ironwork. 11 4 Tc,at Peters should choose to build the 
Ambassador in a Spanish Revival mode was not unusual; the style 
produced many handsome hotels during this period. 

Peters originally designed the hotel for four stories but it was 
re·iesigned before construction with eig;,t floors ar.·2 a· added ninth 
floor roof ga,.·den. In fact, the roof garden was a.d,,e-:tised as one of 
the hotel's most ambitious feata,·.,s on its oper.ing day of May 31, 1925. 
On that Sunday the crowd stood three bloc~s long down Broadway to 
see what was to that time the lacgest family hotel in Kansas City. 5 

Perh2.ps the building's most outstanding architectural feature was the 
roof garden. Its own separate elevator was added after the original 
plans, in addition to the two· already operating elevators. It boasted 
a sunroom 100' long, four banquet rooms in walnut, a music room, and 
open gardens with palms,flowers, and awnings. The ninth floor kitchen 
was larger than the main kitchen. French doors ope·.1ed out onto a 
wrought-iron balcony and the entire east side of the roof garden 
featured french wi, . .Jows between handsome wood columns. 

The roof garden was not the only specta::le on opening day, however, as 
the 105 apartments and 108 hotel rooms were open for inspection and 
the advertising proclaimed: "The hotel has various service departments, 
one of the most interesting being a provision that a guest may specify 
"an apt. and piano," just as once 3. ·~room and bath ff were ordered." The 
shops on Broadway included a grocery, library, barber shop, beauty shop 
in ivory and green, and a tailoring establishment. The dining room 
interior featured wrought iron grills and marble. The overall interior 
of the Ambassador "fc'.·j designed by M.E. Reiser. 6 

After such a prestigious ::,eginning, the hotel ,,,egan to r3.pidly cha;i,;:ie 
hands. In 1928 Dick R. Lane of the Blackhawk Hotels Company bought the 
hotel and hired George C. Allen, manager of several famous Chicago 
lake shore hotel,s, to oversee it. From that time, its changed ha,·,~s 
several times until in 1945 Milton Silverman & Associates bought all 
four buildings and owned them until 1981 when they were purchased by 
the present owners. 

It was under Silverman'~ reign that many of the alterations took place. 
The Colony Steakhouse, a famous Kansas City institution, moved to the 
site around 1955 and plac·ed a marble facade over the ori.ginal store­
fronts on the north e~d. At this time, too, the original canopy was 
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removed and an aluminum replacement put up. 7 The dining room and bar 
were remodelled in 1945.8 The roof garden changed from a public party 

· area to a pri va t,e one in the early 1960' s when it was altered into a 
private residence for Dominican Republic Dictator Truhilio, who was 
attending Commanding General Staff at Leavenworth.Rumor has it that 
the roof garden became a well-known party place for young starlets 
such as Kim Novak.9 

The Ambassad::,, :c:c,:.e1 is undergoing renovation by the current owners for 
use as an apartment/hotel. 

The Ambas~ador A and B were also designed by Nelle E. Peters, in 1927, 
ad] were also built by Quality Builders, at a cost of $70,000. 10 They 
ar.2 fine examples of Craftsmen-style apartments of the period and retain 
many of their original details. The two ap,,.d:11s:nt buildings were 
constructerl as overflow for the Ambassador and for providing extra 
income. The telephones were run in conjunction with the hote1. 11These 
units have been totally renovated by the owners as studio apartments. 

The Congress Building was purchased by the Ambassador Hotel owners in 
1945 to provide parking in an area that was increasi,10ly becoming 

. co;,gested. '.!:'h·2 ~ongress Building was built in 1925 and designed by 
architect Robert F. Gornall. 

Gornall first ~urns up as practicing in Kansas City in 1909. In 1925 
with the construction of the Congress Building, Gornall and his 
partner Jos?~h·Ridgway began a larger practice that extended o~ 
down Broadway and Main. The Uptown Theatre at 3700-12 Broac!ws.y, 
designed by Gornall in a classic mode, is listed on the National 
Register. Gornall also built the Netherlands Hotel at 39th and Main. 

The reinforced concrete and brick structure was b•~il t on a 150 'xl50' 
'llotfor $122,00o. 12 The building is a significa.nt example of Neoclassic 
design: "The archi cects w ~:·2 influenced i.n selecting this type '.:ly the 
presence of the Kansas City Life Building on the opposite side of 
Broadway, a little to the north. Th<e 1~.~ter also is a cla.,,sic type 
in which it was possible to follow precedent more closely because of 
its monumental nature 1113 When first constructed, the building was one 
of the largest on south Broadway in usable floor area. A.~other signi­
ficant feature of the Congress Building was a parking garage designed 
behind the front office suites, to s 1.1pport 150 "motor car-.." This was 
a ,.1esign which ·,\(ei.s :·.o virtually insure its survival 55 years later. 

The Congress Building is being renovated for office s,~i tes and retail 
space ~Yf the current owners. 
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Footnotes 

1. Kansas City Star, May 31, 1925. 

2. Interview, M~s. Barney Goodman. 

3. Piland, Sherry. "Early Kansas City > rc".i tect: A Liberated Woma.'1." 

4. Ehrlich, George. Kansas City, Missouri: An Architectural History. 

5. Star, May 31, 1925. 

6. " " 
7. Interview, Mr. Irv Rubin. 

18. Public Wor\:s. 

9. Rubin interview. 

10. Landmarks Commission records. 

11. Rubin interview. 

12. Western Contractor. 

13 .. Kansas City Star, October 4, 1925. 
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Rubin, Irving. Interview, 20 June 1981. 
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the west side of Broadway until parallel wi. :ch the Congress Building 
property and then crossing Broadway to the east side to the southwest 
corner of the -::0. •'}ress Bui 1ding; exte,,ding east 150' , thence north 
150', then west 150' to the northwest corner of the Congress Building; 
and then crossing Broadway to the original starting point. 

ITEM NUMBER 11 

2. James M. Denny, Chief, Nomi nations-Survey 
and State Contact Person 
Department of Natural Resources 
Historic Preservation Program 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102 

PAGE l 

June 1982 
314-751-4096 
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Name of Property: Ambassador Hotel Historic District 

City or Vicinity: Kansas City 

County: Jackson County State: 
 
MO 

Photographer: Mary J. Matthews 

Date 
Photographed: Jun. 1981 

 
Description of Photograph(s) and number, include description of view indicating direction of camera: 
 
1 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, Primary E façade. 

2 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43
rd

 Street, E façade, detail of roofline of tower 
and loggia which originally opened from the roof garden. 
3 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, N façade, 1

st
 story terra cotta detail. 

4 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43
rd

 Street, Altered storefront on the SE corner, 
E façade. 
5 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, original storefronts, E façade. 

6 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43
rd

 Street, brass elevator in main lobby. 
7 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, primary N façade. 

8 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43
rd

 Street, primary N façade, NE. 
9 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, stone detail on porch posts, primary 

façade. 
10 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, reverse glass sign, front façade 

detail. 
11 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, copper Mission style porch lamp 

with maze glass. 
12 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, brass door plate, front façade. 

13 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43
rd

 Street, primary W façade. 
14 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, parking entrance, W façade, NW 

corner. 
15 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, storefront and main entry, W 

façade. 
16 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, storefront and elevation, W façade. 

17 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43
rd

 Street, pressed metal frieze above first 
floor, W façade. 
18 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, copper lamp detail. 

19 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43
rd

 Street, marble newel post at first floor main 
entry, stairway to second floor. 
20 of 20. Interstate Commercial Investments, 1001 W 43

rd
 Street, plaque describing parking system in 

Congress garage, bronze. 












































